
 
 

Please ask for: 

Lisa Young 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk 
 

1 February 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Economic Development Board 
DATE: 9 February 2022 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor, Councillor Hook (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board, Councillor Burgess (ex-Officio) 

 
Councillor Philpott (Chairman) 
Councillor Beavis (Vice-Chair) 

 

Councillor Bateman 
Councillor Casey 
Councillor Mrs Furlong 
Councillor Hutchison 
Councillor Johnston 
 

Councillor Mrs Jones 
Councillor Miss Kelly 
Councillor Mitchell 
Councillor Pepper 
Councillor Scard 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Economic Development Board 
9 February 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of Interest   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.   
 

 

3.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 7th  February 2022.  The 
total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes). 
 

 

4.   Public Questions - Standing Item 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Monday7th February 2022) 
 
 

 

5.   Fareham Borough Local Plan Statement of Common Ground 
(Pages 1 - 34) 

 

 In accordance with the Government’s National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) public bodies have a duty to cooperate on 
planning issues that cross administrative boundaries.  Consequently 
it is necessary for both Gosport Borough Council (GBC) and 
Fareham Borough Council (FBC) to agree a Statement of Common 
Ground (SoCG) for their respective Local Plans.  
 

 

6.   Any Other Items   



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

  
 AGENDA ITEM NO. 
  

Board/Committee: Economic Development Board 

Date of Meeting: 9th   February 2022 

Title: Second Version of the Fareham Local Plan 2037: 
Statement of Common Ground between Fareham 
Borough Council and Gosport Borough Council 

Author: Manager of Planning Policy 

Status: For Decision 

  
 PURPOSE 
 In accordance with the Government’s National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) public bodies have a duty to cooperate on planning 
issues that cross administrative boundaries.  Consequently it is 
necessary for both Gosport Borough Council (GBC) and Fareham 
Borough Council (FBC) to agree a Statement of Common Ground 
(SoCG) for their respective Local Plans.  
 
Members will recall that an initial version of the SoCG for the Fareham 
Local Plan 2037 (FLP2037) between the two authorities was agreed by 
this Board on 17th November 2021.  This highlighted that there was an 
outstanding highway issue that needed further research and that it may 
be necessary to revise the SoCG accordingly. This report sets out the 
details surrounding this outstanding issue.  

  
 RECOMMENDATION 
 That this Board: 

 Approves the Second Version of the Fareham Local Plan 2037: 
Statement of Common Ground between Fareham Borough 
Council and Gosport Borough Council (Appendix 1) and that the 
Head of Planning and Regeneration duly signs it on behalf of the 
Council.  

 That this Council withdraws its holding objection to the Fareham 
Local Plan 2037 on the specific highway matter detailed in this 
report.   

1 Introduction 
  
1.1 Members will recall that the initial SoCG was presented as recently as 

November 2021.  This highlighted that there was an outstanding 
holding objection relating to the need for clarification regarding the 
transport modelling undertaken on behalf of FBC.  This clarification has 
now been received and this report focuses on that particular matter.   

  
1.2 For Members’ convenience the previous Board Report on the initial 

SoCG (17/11/21) is included in Appendix 2 which sets out the 
background to the Council’s representations to the various versions of 
the Fareham Local Plan and details the other matters included in the 

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

agreed SoCG. 
  
1.3 The most recent version of the Fareham Local Plan 2037 is the 

Revised Publication Draft (Regulation 19) (FLP2037).  This was 
reported to the Regulatory Board on 21st July 2021. FBC have now 
submitted this version of their Local Plan to the Secretary of State and 
an Inspector has been appointed to hold an Examination in Public on 
the unresolved objections. The sessions are currently scheduled to 
commence on 8th March. The SoCG will form part of FBC’s evidence 
base. 

  
1.4 The representations made by GBC to the latest FLP2037 can be 

summarised as  follows: 
  That this Council supports that land east of Newgate Lane East 

is designated within the  Strategic Gap as shown on the latest 
Policies Map; 

 That this Council supports that the land east of Newgate Lane 
East (formerly known as HA2) is no longer identified as a 
housing allocation in the FLP2037; 

 That this Council submits a holding objection relating to the East 
of Crofton Cemetery and South of Longfield Avenue allocations 
until such time that a transport assessment (TA) which includes 
the cumulative impact of development in the FLP2037 and the 
emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 (GBLP2038) 
concludes that there is no detrimental impact on the 
effectiveness of the road infrastructure serving the Gosport 
Peninsula including the Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane 
East.  This work would form part of the Statement of Common 
Ground between the two local planning authorities; 

 That this Council, whilst supporting the overall intention of Policy 
DS1: Development in the Countryside, considers that 
amendments are required for reasons set out in the Regulatory 
Board Report of 21st July 2021 

 That this Council objects to the detailed wording  of the following 
policies  or parts of policies as detailed in the Regulatory Board 
Report of 21st July 2021: 

- Policy HP4  

- Policy HP6 

 That this Council supports the employment allocations at 
Daedalus (Policies E1, E2 and E3). 

 That this Council supports the following policies: 

- Policy E5 which protects employment sites including a 
number on the Gosport Peninsula; 



3 
 

- Policy E6 on boatyards which aims to protect important 
marine sites for employment purposes;  

- Policy E7 which aims to safeguard the Solent Airport at 
Daedalus; 

- Policy TIN2 which aims to ensure development does not 
have an unacceptable impact on highway safety and the 
residual cumulative impact on the road network is not severe; 

- Policy TIN3 which safeguards land to support the delivery of 
the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit scheme. 

 That Policy NE9 includes specific reference to the potential for 
green infrastructure improvements in the Fareham, Gosport, 
Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington Strategic Gap. 

  
1.5 This report focuses on the holding objection as set out in the third bullet 

point in Paragraph 1.4, regarding highway matters concerning these 
two allocations. 

  
2 Report 
  
2.1 Members will recall that the FLP2037 includes two proposed 

allocations: land east of Crofton Cemetery (180 dwellings); and land 
south of Longfield Road (1250 dwellings). This Council considered this 
element in detail in the Regulatory Board Report of 21st July 2021. 
Consequently the allocations are considered acceptable in relation to 
two out of three of the main areas of concern:  there is no direct access 
onto the Stubbington Bypass from these sites; and that both 
developments can be designed to leave a functional gap between the 
Stubbington Bypass and the built-up area and hence retain a sense 
that one is leaving one built up area and passing through the 
countryside. 

  
2.2 On 10th January 2022 a planning application for 206 dwellings on land 

east of Crofton Cemetery was allowed on appeal by a Planning 
Inspector.  This proposal accorded with the two points mentioned 
above in that there is no direct access onto the Stubbington Bypass 
and that there is a sufficient buffer between the site and the 
Stubbington Bypass and thereby maintaining a functioning gap. It is 
therefore appropriate to amend the relevant references in the SoCG 
accordingly as shown by the tracked changes in Appendix 1.  
Consequently following the appeal decision the holding objection now 
only effectively relates to the allocation south of Longfield Avenue. 

  
2.3 The Council considers that given the long-standing and well 

documented issues of accessibility and congestion on the Gosport 
peninsula it is critically important to demonstrate that the cumulative 
impact of new development in the Strategic Gap together with the 
proposed growth in Gosport Borough will not have a detrimental impact 



4 
 

on the capacity and the overall accessibility of the highway network 
serving the Peninsula including the Stubbington Bypass, and Newgate 
Lane East as well as other key road junctions. 

  
2.4 This holding objection and the initial SoCG recognised that further 

clarification was required in relation to the transport assessment (TA) 
on this matter.   

  
2.5 The TA which supports the FLP2037 was produced in 2020 and uses a 

base year of 2015. The methodology for the Transport Assessment 
was agreed with the Highway Authority (Hampshire County Council) 
and identifies a number of junctions requiring mitigation as a result of 
Local Plan development. The TA modelling uses Solent Transport’s 
Sub-Regional Transport Model (SRTM) to test the cumulative impact of 
the Local Plan traffic at a macro-level.  The model makes assumptions 
in relation to growth from sites identified in neighbouring authorities 
adopted Local Plan.  The TA followed the established methodology 
used by a number of Hampshire authorities, and although there were 
some junctions that flagged as potential as a significant or severe 
impact when mitigation was added the impact was found to be 
acceptable. Furthermore, HCC as the Highway Authority have raised 
no objection to the methodology used. 

  
2.6 The TA is based on a Do Minimum scenario of 12,100 homes which is 

greater than the housing growth identified in the latest FLP2037 which 
sets out a current requirement of 9,556 dwellings and a total supply of 
10,594 dwellings. Both the Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane are 
included in the model’s baseline and no capacity issues have been 
identified as a result. There are no unacceptable impacts identified nor 
mitigation required to junctions near or in the Gosport administrative 
boundary from proposed allocations in the FLP2037. This includes the 
Peel Common roundabout, Gosport Road or roads that lead into 
Stubbington. 

  
2.7 The two authorities in liaison with HCC have now undertaken some 

further work on the transport assessment which demonstrates that the 
TA (2020) modelling used for the latest version of the FLP2037 
included sufficient ‘headroom’ to accommodate the additional growth 
proposed in the emerging GBLP2038. Details are summarised below: 
 

a) The FBC TA used for the latest FLP2037 modelled 12,169 rather 
than the 10,594 eventually included in the FLP2037;  

b) Consequently the modelling included 1,575 dwellings over the 
number included in the FLP2037 thus providing some 
‘headroom’ in the modelling to absorb additional growth in 
Gosport Borough; 

c) This modelling did include an element of growth in Gosport 
Borough  to cover the period 2015-2036 (the period covered by 
the TA) including all outstanding planning permissions and 



5 
 

allocations and an assumed 1,800 dwellings to take into account 
growth in addition to that identified in the current adopted 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (GBLP2029). 
Consequently a total of 3,855 dwellings in Gosport has been 
included in the modelling used in the TA; 

d) However this figure does not include the full level of growth 
covered in the emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 
(GBLP2038) including the additional two years of the plan 
period; 

e) In order to take this into account if one takes the proposed 206 
dwellings per annum (dpa) in the GBLP2038 and extrapolate 
this figure over the whole period between 2015-2038 this would 
total 4,738 which is 883 dwellings more than modelled in point 
c (i.e. 3,855); 

f) Importantly this 883 figure is lower the 1,575 ‘headroom’ outlined 
in b) with 692 ‘remaining’’; 

g) The ‘remaining’ figure could be higher if one assumes a lower 
dpa over the whole period. For example based on the housing 
supply as at 1st April 2021 the dpa projected over the whole 
adopted Local Plan period 2011-2029 is currently calculated to 
be 196 dpa.  If one uses this figure to cover the Adopted Local 
Plan period between 2015-2029 (i.e. 14 years) and use the 206 
dpa included in the emerging GBLP2038 figure to cover the 
period 2029-2038 (i.e. 9 years) one would calculate a figure 
4,598 dwellings (i.e. 2,744 + 1854).  This would be 743 
dwellings higher than originally modelled for Gosport but 
certainly within the 1,575 headroom with 832 ‘remaining’.  

  
2.8 It is considered appropriate to determine similar impacts on the road 

network when substituting the additional growth identified in the 
emerging GBLP2038 for those previously included in the Strategic 
Growth Area modelled in FBC’s TA.  Ultimately the key routes and 
junctions would be used by traffic from developments in both Fareham 
and Gosport on the peninsula in both scenarios. 

  
2.9 The TA shows that the modelled number of dwellings does not have an 

unacceptable impact on either journey times in and out of the 
peninsula, nor the objectives of the new infrastructure investment at 
Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane.  The modelling reflects the 
unmitigated scenario, i.e. the do minimum model run with no mitigation 
included. Localised mitigation will be required as part of the 
developments which could include highway, public transport and active 
mode improvements, either in isolation or collectively. 

  
2.10 GBC’s own modelling commissioned for the GBLP2038 demonstrates 

that growth in Gosport does not generate any significant issues on the 
highway network outside of the Borough. 



6 
 

  
2.11 HCC have made representations regarding the submitted FLP2037 and 

consider that the TA assessed the cumulative impacts of the site 
allocations and demonstrates that the significant transport impacts of 
the local plan development on the highway network can be mitigated 
through proposed highway interventions as well as the relevant public 
transport and active travel proposals and this is reflected in the SoCG 
agreed between FBC and HCC1. 

  
2.12 In the light of the above it is considered that the TA work undertaken by 

FBC takes into account growth in Gosport Borough and that the 
impacts on the road network of the proposed allocation south of 
Longfield Avenue as set out in the FLP2038 are therefore deemed 
acceptable in principle subject to the appropriate local/site-specific 
mitigation measures. It is clear that any growth beyond these levels will 
require a refreshed TA to consider fully the impacts on the highway.  It 
is therefore proposed to withdraw the Council’s holding objection and 
amend the SoCG accordingly. For Member’s convenience a tracked 
changes version is included in Appendix 1 with the revisions shown.  If 
agreed by the Board these will be ‘accepted’ and the second version of 
the SoCG will be signed and supersede the original version.  This will 
then be included as part of FBC’s evidence base. 

  
3 Risk Assessment 
 
3.1 

  
The statutory Duty to Co-operate places a legal duty on local planning 
authorities and other organisations to engage constructively, actively 
and on an ongoing basis to develop development plan documents.  As 
part of the Duty to Cooperate, the NPPF introduced the requirement for 
cross boundary issues to be addressed in a Statement of Common 
Ground. Whilst this is not a duty to agree it is important for a Planning 
Inspector to be clear where there are areas of agreement between 
local authorities and where disagreements remain.  This document 
serves this purpose. 

  
4 Conclusion and Next steps 
4.1 The document sets out broad areas of agreement between the 

authorities as well as setting out briefly how previous matters of 
concern have been addressed. It also highlights matters that our 
unresolved. Once signed by the relevant officer from each authority this 
document will be submitted as part of FBC’s evidence base for its 
forthcoming examination in public.  

  
4.2 GBC have maintained an objection to Policies DS1, HP4 and HP6 

regarding the detailed wording of these policies which it considers has 
the potential to undermine the strategic gap, particularly east of 
Newgate Lane. FBC however have not amended these policies and 

                                            
1
 Document SCG007: Highways Authority Statement of Common Ground: 

http://planningpdf.fareham.gov.uk/pdf/planning/local_plan/SCG007_Highway_Authority_State
ment_of_Common_Ground.pdf  

http://planningpdf.fareham.gov.uk/pdf/planning/local_plan/SCG007_Highway_Authority_Statement_of_Common_Ground.pdf
http://planningpdf.fareham.gov.uk/pdf/planning/local_plan/SCG007_Highway_Authority_Statement_of_Common_Ground.pdf


7 
 

this area of disagreement remains and will need to be considered by 
the Planning Inspector. 

  
4.3 This Council will also prepare a SoCG with FBC at the Regulation 19 

stage of the emerging GBLP 2038 later this year and this will also be 
informed by emerging evidence of the work being carried out by the 
Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) on a sub-regional planning 
strategy. 

  
 
 
 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

None 

Legal Services 
comments: 

None 

Climate Change Not applicable- This is an agreed position with 
Fareham Borough Council regarding the Fareham 
Local Plan 2037 which is subject to a sustainability 
appraisal prepared by FBC and will be included as 
part of the forthcoming examination in public. 

Equality and 
Diversity  

Not applicable- This report relates to a document 
prepared by FBC and will be subject to its own 
Equality and Diversity Statement. 

Crime and Disorder Not applicable- This is an agreed position with 
Fareham Borough Council regarding the Fareham 
Local Plan 2037 which is subject to a sustainability 
appraisal prepared by FBC and will be included as 
part of the forthcoming examination in public. 

Council Plan: N/A 

Risk Assessment: See Section 3 

Background papers: Regulatory Board of the 21st July 2021 

Appendices Appendix 1: Second Version of the Fareham Local 
Plan 2037: Statement of Common Ground between 
Fareham Borough Council and Gosport Borough 
Council (Feb 2022) 
Appendix 2- Economic Development Board Report 
of 17th November 2021 relating to initial version of 
the Fareham Local Plan 2037: Statement of 
Common Ground between Fareham Borough 
Council and Gosport Borough 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer: 

Jayson Grygiel, Manager of Planning Policy  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Statement of Common Ground 

between Fareham Borough Council and  

Gosport Borough Council 

 

 

Version 2.0 

February 2022 

  



2 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

1 Introduction 
  
 What is a Statement of Common Ground? 
  
1.1 The Duty to Co-operate, introduced by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 (amended by Section 33A of the Localism Act) places a legal duty on local 
planning authorities, county councils in England and other prescribed bodies to 
engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis to develop development 
plan documents, including activities that prepare the way or support the activities of 
preparing development plan documents, in respect of strategic matters. 

  
1.2 The Duty to Co-operate in relation to planning of sustainable development as set 

out in Section 33A of the Localism Act 2011 specifically relates to ‘strategic matters’ 
which are defined as follows:  

• Sustainable development or use of land that has or would have a significant 
impact on at least two planning areas, in particular in connection with 
sustainable development or use of land for or in connection with strategic 
infrastructure which has or would have a significant impact on at least two 
planning areas, and  

• Sustainable development or use of land in a two-tier area if the development 
or use— (i) is a county matter, or (ii) has or would have a significant impact 
on a county matter.  

  
1.3 Paragraph 20 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) also outlines 

strategic priorities that a local plan should have to cover. They include:  
• Housing (including affordable housing), employment, retail, leisure and other 

commercial development; 
• The provision of infrastructure for transport, telecommunications, security, 

waste management, water supply, wastewater, flood risk and coastal change 
management, and the provision of minerals and energy (including heat); 

• Community facilities (such as health, education and cultural infrastructure); 
and 

• Conservation and enhancement of the natural, built and historic 
environment, including landscapes and green infrastructure, and planning 
measures to address climate change mitigation and adaptation.   

  
1.4 In accordance with the NPPF (paragraph 24), public bodies have a duty to 

cooperate on planning issues that cross administrative boundaries, particularly 
those which relate to the strategic priorities set out above. This forms part of each 
local planning authority’s evidence for their respective emerging Local Plans. 

  
1.5 This Statement of Common Ground (SoCG) has been prepared in accordance with 

paragraph 27 of the NPPF and the section of the Planning Practice Guidance on 
Maintaining Effective Cooperation.  It has also followed guidance prepared by the 
Planning Advisory Service (PAS) on this matter. It has been prepared in parallel 
with the Publication Local Plan (Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 20121). This Plan, upon adoption, will 
supersede the existing Fareham Local Plan Parts 1 and 2. The new Local Plan will 
cover the period to 2037 and sets out the vision, objectives and policies to guide 
future development in the Borough over the plan period. 

  
 What does this document include? 
  
1.6 Section 2 outlines the administrative areas covered by the SoCG 
  
1.7 Section 3 sets out the Strategic Issues which form the background to this SoCG.   
  

                                                           
1
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/19/made 



4 
 

1.8 Section 4 sets out the area of agreements which have been reached on the 
Strategic Issues.   

  
 What parties are involved with this Statement of Common Ground? 
  
1.9 This SoCG is an agreed statement between Fareham Borough Council (FBC) and 

Gosport Borough Council (GBC) in relation to FBC’s Revised Publication Local 
Plan. 

  
2.0 Strategic Geography 
  
2.1 This SoCG relates to the area covered by Fareham Borough Council and Gosport 

Borough Council as shown on the map below. 
  
 

 
 Figure 1: Fareham Borough Council and Gosport Borough Council Administrative Boundaries 

  
2.2 The Planning Practice Guidance states that a SoCG will need to cover the area that 

policy making authorities and public bodies cooperate within, depending on the 
strategic matters being planned for and the most appropriate functional geography 
for the gathering of evidence and the preparation of planning policies. However, 
local planning authorities may have more than one Statement of Common Ground 
where there are strategic cross-boundary matters to be addressed.   

  
  



5 
 

3.0  Strategic Matters 
  
3.1 This section sets out where agreement has or has not been reached on cross 

border strategic matters. 
  
 Housing Need and Supply 
  
 Fareham Borough Council’s Position 
  
3.2 Fareham Borough Council’s (FBC) Local Plan 2037 aims to deliver sufficient 

land to meet the housing need for the Borough and the Council has undertaken 
two Regulation 19 consultations and three Regulation 18 consultations on that 
basis.  

  
3.3 The current standard methodology takes account of population growth and 

housing affordability with a cities and urban centres uplift for urban local 
authorities in the top 20 cities and urban centres. National policy currently 
dictates that Local Planning Authorities are to use the 2014 based household 
projections as the basis for calculating their housing need, unless there are 
exceptional circumstances where alternatives may be appropriate. The 
household projections are then adjusted to take account of affordability using the 
most recent affordability data (March 2021).  Therefore, the housing requirement 
for the borough is 541 homes per annum. 

  
3.4 The strategic housing provision, described in Strategic Policy H1 (Housing 

Provision) of the Revised Publication Local Plan (2021), is based on the 
standard methodology figure re-confirmed by the Government in December 
2020.  The level of housing provision in the Revised Publication Local Plan 
includes a contingency of 11% to address any potential slippages in delivery, 
and a contribution of 900 homes (plus 11%2) towards unmet need from 
neighbouring authorities. Therefore, the overall requirement for the Borough until 
2037 is projected to be 9,556 new dwellings. 

  
3.5 Strategic Policy H1 along with the Housing Allocations identified in the Revised 

Publication Local Plan (2021) show how FBC will deliver the above identified 
housing requirement. The stepped trajectory included in the Plan shows that 
whilst challenging, the housing requirement is deliverable and the contribution to 
unmet need is considered appropriate. 

  
3.6 It is understood from the work on the revised Partnership for South Hampshire 

(PfSH) Spatial Position Statement (SPS) that, based on standardised plan 
periods of 2021-2036, there is a predicted shortfall in the region of 12,896 
homes across the sub-region3. These numbers are based on the standard 
methodology for calculating housing need using the 2021 base date and 
includes the urban uplift for Southampton. They do not consider housing sites 
that have been included in emerging Plans that have not reached the Regulation 
19 (Publication) stage. Table 4 of the Statement indicates that Fareham have a 
surplus of supply of 1,807. The SPS work is currently ongoing and the level of 
unmet need within neighbouring authorities and across the sub-region is 
therefore likely to alter as plans emerge within the sub-region and the 
government makes changes to the standard methodology. 
 

 Gosport Borough Council’s Position 
  
3.7 Gosport Borough Council (GBC) are currently preparing a new Local Plan which 

will ultimately replace its current adopted Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-

                                                           
2
 Of the unmet need contribution. 

3
 Based on figures released in October 2021 (PfSH Joint Committee). 



6 
 

2029.  The new plan will cover the period to 2038 and the Regulation 18 version 
was presented to its Economic Development Board on 22nd September 2021 and 
is subject to a 10 week consultation period ending on 3rd December 2021. The 
latest GBC’s Interim Local Development Scheme (September 2021) envisages 
that consultation on the Regulation 19 Local Plan will take place in October 
2022.  

  
3.8 The emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 (GBLP2038)  identifies an 

unmet requirement of approximately 2,000 dwellings using the Government’s 
Standard Method based on the 2014 projections rather than the more recent 
2018 projections. The proposed 3,500 dwellings in the emerging Local Plan 
represents 205 dwellings per annum which is an increase from the 170 dpa 
currently set out in the Adopted Local Plan representing a 20% increase.  The 
majority of this development will take place on the Government’s preferred 
option of developing brownfield land.  These sites have a number of challenges 
including the need to provide enhanced flood defences, restore historic 
buildings, address contaminated land issues and to ensure that adjacent 
internationally important habitats are not harmed.  

  
3.9 
 
 
 

The emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 identifies a supply of 3,344 
dwellings and paragraph 2.3.28 of the Plan states that ‘The Local Plan allocation 
of 3,500 dwellings will provide an achievable and realistic housing allocation, 
although it is recognised at this point in time there is a small shortfall’. GBC has 
highlighted these figures to PfSH as part of the ongoing study and has not 
requested any single local authority to meet its unmet need until such times as 
the PfSH evidence has been reported. GBC recognise that the distribution of 
housing need is broader than the GBC and FBC authority areas and will require 
consideration and co-operation at the sub regional scale.  

  
 Agreed Position 
  
3.10 GBC and FBC will continue to work collaboratively to address strategic planning 

matters, both through PfSH and, as necessary, on a bilateral basis. Both FBC 
and GBC recognise there is ongoing sub-regional work in relation to housing 
need and supply and that the level of unmet need will alter as other Local Plans 
progress. Both parties agree to support the ongoing partnership working to 
address sub-regional unmet need being delivered through the PfSH Statement 
of Common Ground to produce a new Joint Strategy and will continue to 
contribute towards the project. PfSH is supportive of authorities proceeding with 
local plans before the production of the Joint Strategy has concluded and 
recognises the importance of partnership authorities having up-to-date Local 
Plans. Should the Joint Strategy work identify sites not considered suitable for 
development in the Fareham Local Plan technical evidence, this would be a 
matter for the Local Plan review.   As a member of PfSH, GBC have signed a 
SoCG with FBC on the Fareham Local Plan accepting that the FBC contribution 
to unmet need is ‘currently considered appropriate’ [Partnership for South 
Hampshire Statement of Common Ground (fareham.gov.uk)].   

  
 Matters to be Resolved 
  
3.11 None  
  
 Employment 
  
 Fareham Borough Council’s Position 
  
3.12 The Revised Publication Local Plan (2021) uses an updated evidence base as 

the basis for the employment strategy within the Plan. An Economic, 
Employment and Commercial Needs (including logistics) study has been 

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/publicationplan/SCG005_Partnership_for_South_Hampshire_Statement_of_Common_Ground.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/publicationplan/SCG005_Partnership_for_South_Hampshire_Statement_of_Common_Ground.pdf


7 
 

undertaken by PfSH which sets out the overall need and distribution of 
development in the sub-region to 2040. The Revised Publication Local Plan 
(2021) allocates 121,964 sq.m. of employment floorspace across the borough 
over the plan period. The Plan allocates seven employment sites to meet the 
above requirement in addition to the employment allocation set out in the 
Welborne Plan. The development strategy proposed by the Revised Publication 
Local Plan (2021) is for a mix of large and small sites to offer a degree of 
flexibility and choice in size, location and availability of sites. In line with the 
PfSH findings, and to provide the maximum amount of flexibility to respond to 
changing circumstances all of the allocations are for employment uses and not 
restricted to any one use class. 

  
3.13 Daedalus, including Solent Airport, falls within the administrative boundaries of 

Fareham and Gosport. The Fareham Local Plan allocates 77,900 sq.m. of 
employment floorspace and ancillary uses at Faraday Business Park and 
Swordfish Business Parks at Daedalus set out in the Daedalus Vision4. The 
allocation of these sites continues the commitment of Fareham Borough Council 
to support the ongoing success of Daedalus. 

  
3.14 The Fareham Borough Local Plan 2037 includes a policy which relates to the 

Solent Airport at Daedalus (Policy E7). The policy protects the site for airport 
related uses to support aviation unless it can be demonstrated that such uses 
are no longer financially viable. 

  
 Gosport Borough Council’s Position 
  
3.15 The Gosport Adopted Local Plan (2015) focusses regeneration on a number of 

brownfield sites, which comprises a mix of uses including employment 
opportunities. This approach will continue in the forthcoming Local Plan and this 
is evidenced by the Economic Development Needs Assessment and the 
Employment Land Availability Assessment (EDNA/ELAA) which was published 
in February 2019 with the findings incorporated into the emerging GBLP2038 
(Reg. 18). 

  
3.16 GBC accepts the overall quantum of employment development proposed by 

FBC. GBC also supports the Revised Publication Local Plan (2021) vision and 
strategic priority 6 which seeks to protect employment areas and provides for 
future employment space. 

  
3.17 The Fareham Borough Local Plan 2037 includes a policy on Boatyards in the 

Borough (Policy E6) which aims to protect marine-related employment uses. 
GBC’s representations on the Draft Local Plan (2017) considers Policy E6 (then 
Policy E5) to be sound as the availability of waterfront sites around the Solent is 
limited and the marine businesses, they support contribute to one of the key 
sectors of the sub-regional economy of which Gosport marine sites form part of 
this cluster. 

  
3.18 GBC’s representations on the Revised Publication Local Plan considers Policies 

E1, E2, E3 and E7 to be sound and supports the allocations at Daedalus, 
including Solent Airport, as the borough has the lowest job density in the South 
East and one of the lowest in England. In addition, GBC also supports the 
existing employment sites in Fareham, as a number of the sites are on the 
Gosport-Fareham administrative boundary and provide employment to Gosport 
residents which are accessible by public transport, cycling and walking 

  
 Agreed Position 
  

                                                           
4
 Daedalus Vision and Outline Strategy (fareham.gov.uk) 

https://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/business/daedalus/vision.pdf


8 
 

3.19 Both Councils agree that the Fareham Revised Publication Local Plan will 
allocate sufficient land, and that there is enough land to meet employment 
requirements particularly within the area around Daedalus. Both Councils 
support the employment allocations at Daedalus set out in the plan. Both 
councils agree that there is currently no identified cross boundary need to be 
planned for.  

  
3.20 Both FBC and GBC agree to liaise on future employment supply and demand in 

particular where sites are to be allocated or conversely released for employment 
use in the Daedalus area.  

  
3.21 Both councils will continue to engage through the Partnership for South 

Hampshire Statement of Common Ground which will consider the wider 
economic needs of South Hampshire and distribution of economic development 
between authorities. 

  
 Matters to be Resolved 
  
3.22 None 
  
 Transport 
  
 Fareham Borough Council’s Position 
  
3.23 The Fareham Local Plan is supported by a Strategic Transport Assessment 

(TA) that assesses the cumulative impact of the Local Plan allocations. The 
methodology for the Transport Assessment was agreed with the Highway 
Authority (Hampshire County Council) and identifies a number of junctions 
requiring mitigation as a result of Local Plan development. The TA modelling 
uses the South Hampshire Strategic Regional Transport Model (SRTM) to test 
the cumulative impact of the Local Plan traffic at a macro-level.  The model 
makes assumptions in relation to growth from sites identified in neighbouring 
authorities adopted Local Plan.  The TA followed the standard methodology 
used by a number of Hampshire authorities, and although there were some 
junctions that flagged as potential as a significant or severe impact when 
mitigation was added the impact was found to be acceptable. Furthermore, the 
Highways Authority have raised no objection to the TA and the methodology 
used. 

  
3.24 The TA is based on a Do Minimum scenario of 12,100 homes which is greater 

than the housing growth identified in the Revised Publication Local Plan (2021). 
Both the Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane are included in the model’s 
baseline and no capacity issues have been identified as a result. There are no 
unacceptable impacts identified nor mitigation required to junctions near or in 
the Gosport administrative boundary from proposed allocations in the Fareham 
Borough Local Plan 2037. This includes the Peel Common roundabout, Gosport 
Road or roads that lead into Stubbington. A full list of the junctions that were 
considered for mitigation is included in the SRTM Modelling report and is 
included as Appendix 1 

  
3.25 FBC is a partner in the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit (SEHRT) scheme 

which aims to provide improved transport links between Portsmouth, Gosport, 
Fareham and Havant. The rapid transit network will consist of busways (which 
builds on the Eclipse service running from Fareham to Gosport) or lanes that 
are dedicated to buses, and technology which gives priority to buses at 
junctions. Rapid transit services and bus stop infrastructure are designed to 
reduce delays caused to passengers and provide new and more direct routes. 

  
3.26 The Revised Publication Local Plan (2021) is supportive of the SEHRT scheme 



9 
 

and Policy TIN3: Safeguarded Routes identifies and safeguards the route of the 
scheme.  

  
 
 

 Gosport Borough Council’s Position 
  

3.27 
 
 
 
 

It is acknowledged by both parties that given Gosport’s peninsula location with 
limited routes and transport choice, road congestion is one of the key cross-
boundary issues of concern.  The acute road congestion is characterised by 
significant out-commuting as the Borough has one of the lowest job densities in 
England following the contraction of MoD and defence-related employment in 
the Borough over recent decades. 

  
3.28 Consequently, the Council considers it is essential to understand how proposed 

sizeable allocations in the existing Strategic Gap will affect the existing road 
network including recent improvements and the proposed Stubbington Bypass 
currently under construction. These improvements are being delivered to 
alleviate existing long-standing and well-documented access issues to the 
peninsula rather than facilitate significant new development, and it is important 
that the beneficial effects of new infrastructure are not undermined. It will also 
be important to understand this position in order to ensure that greenfield 
development at the north end of the Gosport peninsula in Fareham Borough 
does not impact on the economy of Gosport nor its potential to develop its 
brownfield sites. 

  
3.29 GBC’s representations on the Revised Publication Local Plan (2021) in relation 

to FBC’s Transport Assessment (TA) included a request for further work to be 
undertaken in relation to GBC’s holding objection relating to the two housing 
allocations in the existing strategic gap i.e. land south of Longfield Avenue and 
Land East of Crofton Cemetery. It is recognised that on 10th January 2022 a 
planning application for 206 dwellings on land east of Crofton Cemetery was 
allowed on appeal by a Planning Inspector and consequently the matter in hand 
now only pertains to the allocation south of Longfield Avenue. 

  
3.30 The holding objection requested two elements of further work; firstly to 

understand the specific impact on the Stubbington bypass (under construction 
at the time of writing) and Newgate Lane East bypass (completed in 2018). Both 
bypasses were built primarily to alleviate traffic congestion into Gosport under 
the Highway Authority ‘Improving Access to Fareham and Gosport strategy’.  
Additional assessment shows that the FLP2037 does not have an unacceptable 
impact on either journey times in and out of the peninsula, or the objectives of 
the new infrastructure investment at Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane 
when considering the unmitigated scenario.  The minimal impacts that are 
identified will be reduced when further public transport and active travel 
measures as well as localised highway improvements are introduced. 

  

3.31 The second element was to consider the impact of both Fareham Local Plan 

2037 growth and Gosport Local Plan 2038 growth in the same TA.  Further 

clarification has been provided by FBC on the modelling used in the TA.  GBC 

have considered this and have been satisfied that the number of dwellings 

included in the modelling would take into account the growth contained in the 

emerging GBLP2038; and that with appropriate localised highway mitigation 

and measures to support public transport and active travel the proposed 

allocation south of Longfield Avenue would not have a detrimental impact on the 

highway network when combined with growth in Gosport. GBC is satisfied by 

the comments contained in FBC’s SoCG with HCC (SCG007) that states, ‘The 



10 
 

Do Something modelling is appropriate and demonstrates that mitigation 

schemes in the form of highway capacity enhancements are capable of 

mitigating the impact of the Local Plan development. Both authorities agree 

that further assessment will be required through localised junction modelling as 

part of site-specific transport assessments to fully assess the local impacts of 

Local Plan development.’    
  

  
  

 
 
 
 

 

  
3.32 With regard to other transport matters GBC’s representations on the Publication 

Local Plan (2020) considers TIN2 to be sound as it aims to ensure that 
development does not have an unacceptable impact on highways safety and 
the cumulative impact on the road network from the Local Plan development is 
not severe. 

  
3.33 GBC continues its commitment to the delivery of the Rapid Transit scheme and 

is a partnership organisation to improve the network. GBC’s representations on 

the Publication Local Plan (2020) considers Policy TIN3 to be sounds as it 

safeguards land between Delme Roundabout and the Portsmouth Boundary 

and Quay Street Roundabout to support delivery of the SEHRT scheme and is a 

partner organisation to improve the network. The extension to the route will help 

improve public transport access to Gosport Borough. 
  

 Agreed Position 
  

3.34 Both Councils agree that the baseline information used to inform the transport 

models to make assumptions for growth in other areas is appropriate for the 

purposes of the Fareham Local Plan 2037. Both FBC and GBC acknowledge 

that the SRTM modelling takes into account allocations from Adopted Local 

Plans, not allocations from emerging Local Plans or recent planning 

permissions. These are standard inputs for the modelling process.  
  
3.35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As referenced above the baseline information used to inform the Transport 
Model used for the Fareham Borough Local Plan 2037 makes assumptions on 
growth in other areas, including Gosport. FBC’s Transport Assessment has 
followed the agreed methodology and the model takes account of growth from 
sites in Gosport including additional growth identified in the emerging 
GBLP2038.  Both Councils are satisfied that the allocation on land south of 
Longfield Avenue (policy HA55) will not have a detrimental impact on the 
highway network provided the relevant mitigation measures on local junctions 
are implemented as set out by HCC and recognised in the FBC/HCC SoCG.  In 
addition public transport and active travel measures will also be required as part 
of any mitigation package.  

  



11 
 

3.36 Both authorities agree that there will be no direct access onto the Stubbington 

Bypass from the allocation on land south of Longfield Avenue nor from the land 

east of Crofton Cemetery (now granted consent). 
  

3.37 Both authorities will continue to support delivery of the SEHRT scheme along 

the A27 corridor, safeguarding land and securing contributions towards the 

scheme where appropriate and necessary through respective Local Plan Policy. 

In addition, both Local Plans will proactively promote the use of public transport, 

along with encouraging active travel modes ahead of use of the private 

motorised vehicle through sustainable transport policy. 
  

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 Strategic Gap/Green Infrastructure 
  
 Fareham Borough Council’s Position 
  
3.38 The Council commissioned a Technical Review of Areas of Special Landscape 

Quality and the Strategic Gaps as part of the evidence base in support of the 
Publication Plan. This study was to consider the previous Fareham Landscape 
Assessment (2017) in support of the Revised Publication Local Plan. FBC 
remain committed to Strategic Gaps. 

  
3.39 The Technical Review of Areas of Special Landscape Quality and the Strategic 

Gaps (2020) recommends small boundary amendments to the existing Strategic 
Gaps. This designation is set out in Policy DS2: Development in the Strategic 
Gaps of the Revised Publication Local Plan which makes minor changes to the 
existing boundaries of both the Fareham/Stubbington and the Western Wards 
(Meon Gap) Fareham/Bridgemary and Stubbington/Lee-on-the-Solent (Fareham 
– Stubbington) Strategic Gap. This includes minor amendments to the area to 
the South of Fareham and west of HMS Collingwood and an area to the north 
west of Stubbington – south of Oakcroft Lane and east of Ranvilles Lane. The 
policy ensures that development proposals will not be permitted where they 
significantly affect the integrity of the gap and the physical and visual separation 
of settlements or the distinctive nature of settlement characteristics. 

  
3.40 As noted in the Housing section of this SoCG and in the PfSH Statement of 

Common Ground, FBC is involved in ongoing work on housing need and supply 
as a partnership authority of PfSH, which includes the review of the Spatial 
Position Statement and production of a Joint Strategy. Part of this review 
involves the commissioning of new evidence, including green infrastructure 
opportunities and how these can be delivered within the sub-region. 

  
3.41 In addition, the Council has worked to try and defend speculative development 

in the Strategic Gaps to date and there have been a number of successfully 
dismissed appeals. This includes one that straddles the border of GBC5. The 
Inspector concluded in paragraph 33 of the appeal decision that “the proposed 
development would harm the character and appearance of the area, including in 

                                                           
5
 (APP/A1720/W/21/3269030). 



12 
 

terms of the strategic gap” but ultimately allowed the appeal due to the lack of 
five-year housing land supply 

  
 Gosport Borough Council’s Position 
  
3.42 GBC’s representation on the Publication Local Plan (2020) considers Policy 

DS2 to be sound and strongly supports the extent of the Strategic Gap between 
Fareham/Bridgemary and Stubbington/Lee-on-the-Solent in relation to the land 
east of Newgate Lane East.  This support was retained in GBC’s representation 
on the Revised Publication Local Plan (2021). 

  
3.43 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GBC previously raised an objection to Policy HA2 (Newgate Lane) in relation to 
the impact on the Strategic Gap during the Draft Local Plan consultation (2017). 
However this allocation has subsequently been removed and the Strategic Gap 
designation in this area re-instated.  In its representations to FBC on this matter 
GBC appended its previous objections in order that the Inspector can 
understand GBC’s position on this issue, particularly as it is likely that the 
landowners and potential developers will be promoting this site through the EiP.  

  
3.44 GBC raised an objection to the Strategic Growth Areas during the consultation 

on the Fareham Borough Local Plan supplement (2020). The in-principle 
objection was then removed at the Publication Local Plan (2020) consultation as 
no allocations were proposed in this area. Since this time the 2021 Local Plan 
identified two allocations within part of the area covered by the Strategic Growth 
Area i.e. land south of Longfield Avenue and East of Crofton Cemetery. 
However, in a detailed report presented to GBC’s Regulatory Board on 21st July 
2021 to consider representations to the Local Plan GBC considered that 
sufficient detail was provided on two out of three matters in order not to raise an 
objection on these two particular matters.  Firstly there would be no direct 
access onto the Stubbington Bypass and secondly the allocation policies 
included sufficient provision to ensure that a reasonable sized buffer adjacent 
the Stubbington Bypass would be retained to ensure a sense of gap between 
the settlements is maintained and when one is travelling along the Bypass there 
is a sense of moving between settlements in open countryside. The third matter 
relates to the holding objection on the road capacity and is covered in the 
transport section above.   

  
3.45 GBC’s representation on the Revised Publication Local Plan (2021) supports 

the aims of Policy NE9 but GBC consider that additional opportunities can be 
made within the plan to deliver multi-functional green infrastructure for allocated 
sites. GBC are also a partnership authority of PfSH and recognise that there is 
ongoing work in relation to the evidence for green infrastructure requirements 
within the sub-region. 

  
 Agreed Position 
  
3.46 Both Councils support the principle and maintenance of a strategic gap to 

maintain the separation of Stubbington and Lee-on-the -Solent from Fareham and 
Bridgemary. 

  
3.47 GBC have maintained an objection to Policies DS1, HP4 and HP6 regarding the 

detailed wording of these policies which it considers has the potential to 
undermine the strategic gap, particularly east of Newgate Lane. FBC considers its 
wording for these policies to be sound and consequently this matter will need to 
be considered by the Planning Inspector. 

  
3.48 FBC and GBC will continue to work collaboratively to address strategic planning 

matters. Both FBC and GBC recognise that there is on-going sub-regional work 
which will lead to the review of the Spatial Position Statement and the production 



13 
 

of a Joint Strategy which includes green infrastructure opportunities. 
  
4.0 Areas of Agreement 
  
 Wastewater and Nitrate Neutrality 
  
4.1 Following recent case law and evidence creating uncertainty around the 

contribution of new development in Fareham to deteriorating water quality 
(eutrophication) in the Solent and the effect this is having on the internationally 
designated sites, there is greater emphasis on the burden of proof to demonstrate 
that new development will not cause a likely significant effect on the integrity of 
these sites. Development needs to demonstrate that it would prevent any net 
increase in nutrients and therefore be ‘nutrient neutral’.  

  
4.2 FBC and GBC have accepted that development draining to the Wastewater 

Treatment Works (WTW) at Peel Common could cause nutrient enrichment and 
lead to significant effects on the integrity of internationally designated sites in the 
Solent.  FBC and GBC worked together in the early stages to understand the 
issues. 

  
4.3 FBC and GBC continue to work with PfSH through the Water Quality Working 

Group to coordinate the provision of a strategic PfSH wide solution6 in the medium 
to long term. PfSH have commissioned two reports to date, an Integrated Water 
Management Study (May 2018)7 and a Technical Note on the Calculation of Nitrate 
Loading from Housing Growth (July 2020)8. Both reports recognise that the 
administrative areas of Fareham and Gosport use the Peel Common WTW. 
Furthermore, both authorities have signed a Statement of Common Ground with 
PfSH in relation to the continuing work on wastewater and nitrates as part of a 
review of the 2016 Spatial Position Strategy.  

  
4.4 The PfSH work also includes the appointment of a Strategic Environmental 

Planning Officer to take forward the creation of a pilot sub-region mitigation 
scheme in relation to nitrates. 

  
 Agreed Position 
  
4.5 Both parties agree that the impact of the Fareham Local Plan 2037 on the Peel 

Common WTW are not strategic matters concerning this bilateral SoCG. These 
matters are addressed through FBC’s statement of common ground with PfSH and 
the PfSH statement of common ground to support the PfSH Spatial Strategy. 

  
 Matters to be Resolved 
  
4.6 None. 
  
5.0 Signatories 
  
5.1 Both parties agree that this statement is an accurate representation of matters 

discussed and issues agreed upon. 
  
5.2 It is agreed that these discussions will inform the Fareham Borough Council Local 

Plan 2037 and both parties will continue to work collaboratively in order to meet the 
duty to cooperate. 

  

                                                           
6
 (Public Pack)Agenda Document for Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) Joint Committee, 22/03/2021 18:00 

(push.gov.uk) 
7
 http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/publicationplan/PUSH_IWMS_Report_FINAL.pdf  

8
 https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Wood-Technical-Note-July-2020.pdf  

https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Item-10-PfSH-Nutrient-Neutrality-Update-1.pdf
https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Item-10-PfSH-Nutrient-Neutrality-Update-1.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/publicationplan/PUSH_IWMS_Report_FINAL.pdf
https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Wood-Technical-Note-July-2020.pdf


14 
 

5.3 For Gosport Borough Council the Statement of Common Ground is signed by 
Debbie Gore. For Fareham Borough Council the Statement of Common Ground is 
signed by Richard Jolley. 

   

 Signed: Signed: 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Name: Debbie Gore Name: Richard Jolley 

  

Position: Assistant Chief Executive and 
Head of Planning and Regeneration 

Position: Director of Planning and 
Regulation 

   

 Gosport Borough Council Fareham Borough Council 

   

 Date Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



15 
 

Appendix 1 

Extract from TA SRTM Modelling Report Appendices 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 
 

 

 

 



1 
 

  
APPENDIX 2:  
Economic Development Board Report of 17th November 2021 
regarding the Statement of Common Ground between GBC and FBC re 
the Fareham Local Plan 2037 
 
PURPOSE 

 In accordance with the Government’s National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) public bodies have a duty to cooperate on planning 
issues that cross administrative boundaries.  Consequently it is 
necessary for both Gosport Borough Council (GBC) and Fareham 
Borough Council (FBC) to agree a Statement of Common Ground 
(SoCG) for their respective Local Plans. This report sets out the details 
of the SoCG for the Fareham Local Plan 2037 (FLP2037). 

  
 RECOMMENDATION 
 That this Board: 

 Approves the Fareham Local Plan 2037: Statement of Common 
Ground between Fareham Borough Council and Gosport 
Borough Council (Appendix 1) and that the Head of Planning 
and Regeneration duly signs it on behalf of the Council.  

1 Introduction 
  
1.1 The Duty to Co-operate, introduced by the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004 (amended by Section 33A of the Localism Act) 
places a legal duty on local planning authorities, county councils and 
other prescribed bodies to engage constructively, actively and on an 
ongoing basis to develop development plan documents, in respect of 
strategic matters which includes land use matters. 

  
1.2 In relation to this duty the NPPF sets out guidance for the production of 

a SoCG addressing strategic cross-boundary issues. This forms part of 
each local planning authority’s evidence for their emerging Local Plans. 

  
1.3 Members will recall from reports presented to the Regulatory Board that 

FBC have consulted on their emerging Local Plan to cover the period 
to 2037 five times since 2017.  These are as follows: 
 

 The Consultation Draft Fareham Local Plan (Regulation 18) 
which was reported to the Regulatory Board on 6th December 
2017  

 Fareham Borough Local Plan 2036: Issues and Options 
(Regulation 18) which was reported to the Regulatory Board on 
25th July 2019 

 Fareham Borough Local Plan 2036: Supplement (Regulation 18)  
which was reported to the Regulatory Board on 28th February 
2020 



2 
 

 Fareham Local Plan 2037: Publication Draft (Regulation 19) 
which was reported to the Regulatory Board on 2nd  December 
2020 

 Fareham Local Plan 2037: Revised Publication Draft (Regulation 
19) (FLP2037) which was reported to the Regulatory Board on 
21st July 2021 

1.4 Following the most recent consultation FBC have now submitted their 
Local Plan to the Secretary of State and an Inspector will be appointed 
to hold an Examination in Public on the unresolved objections. The 
SoCG will be submitted once signed by both authorities as part of their 
evidence base. 

  
1.5 Members will recall that there have been numerous changes to the 

FBLP2037. This Council made representations to each version and it is 
those made to the most recent version which will be considered by the 
Inspector.  A full consideration of all the issues are included in the 
Regulatory Board of the 21st July 2021 including our outstanding 
objections and areas where the two authorities can now agree.   The 
Regulatory Board report forms the basis of this Council’s approach to 
the SoCG and can be viewed in full in Appendix 2. 

  
1.6 The representations made by GBC to the FLP2037 can be summarised 

as  follows: 
  That this Council supports that land east of Newgate Lane East 

is designated within the  Strategic Gap as shown on the latest 
Policies Map; 

 That this Council supports that the land east of Newgate Lane 
East (formerly known as HA2) is no longer identified as a 
housing allocation in the FLP2037; 

 That this Council submits a holding objection relating to the East 
of Crofton Cemetery and South of Longfield Avenue allocations 
until such time that a transport assessment which includes the 
cumulative impact of development in the FLP2037 and the 
emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 (GBLP2038) 
concludes that there is no detrimental impact on the 
effectiveness of the road infrastructure serving the Gosport 
Peninsula including the Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane 
East.  This work would form part of the Statement of Common 
Ground between the two local planning authorities; 

 That this Council, whilst supporting the overall intention of Policy 
DS1: Development in the Countryside, considers that 
amendments are required for reasons set out in the Regulatory 
Board Report (paragraphs 5.7-5.26 in Appendix 2). 

 That this Council objects to the detailed wording  of the following 
policies  or parts of policies as detailed in paragraphs 5.7-5.26  



3 
 

in Appendix 2: 

- Policy HP4  

- Policy HP6 

 That this Council supports the employment allocations at 
Daedalus (Policies E1, E2 and E3). 

 That this Council supports the following policies: 

- Policy E5 which protects employment sites including a 
number on the Gosport Peninsula; 

- Policy E6 on boatyards which aims to protect important 
marine sites for employment purposes;  

- Policy E7 which aims to safeguard the Solent Airport at 
Daedalus; 

- Policy TIN2 which aims to ensure development does not 
have an unacceptable impact on highway safety and the 
residual cumulative impact on the road network is not severe; 

- Policy TIN3 which safeguards land to support the delivery of 
the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit scheme. 

 That Policy NE9 includes specific reference to the potential for 
green infrastructure improvements in the Fareham, Gosport, 
Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington Strategic Gap. 

  
2 Report 
  
2.1 The SoCG for the FLP2037  sets out the following strategic cross 

boundary issues which are considered further in this section: 
 

 Housing Supply 

 Employment 

 Transport 

 Strategic Gap/Green Infrastructure 

 Waste water and Nitrate Neutrality 

 
 
 

 Housing Supply 
2.2 This section of the SoCG recognises that the Revised Publication Draft 

of the FLP needs to consider the Government’s Standard Method for 
determining housing requirements for each local planning authority and 
that for Fareham Borough this is currently 541 dwellings per annum 
(dpa).  It also takes into account 900 dwellings of unmet need from 



4 
 

neighbouring authorities and a contingency of 11% to address potential 
non-delivery.  Consequently an overall requirement over the period to 
2037 is considered to be 9,556. 

  
2.3 The SoCG sets out the current housing position as included in the 

emerging GBLP2038 which states that the Plan is seeking to make 
provision for 3,500 dwellings, whilst the Government’s Standard 
Method identifies a figure of 5,500 dwellings for the Borough. 
Consequently there is an unmet requirement of 2,000 dwellings 

  
2.4 The Councils’ agreed position is as follows: 

 
GBC and FBC will continue to work collaboratively to address 
strategic planning matters, both through the Partnership for South 
Hampshire (PfSH) and, as necessary, on a bilateral basis. Both 
FBC and GBC recognise there is ongoing sub-regional work in 
relation to housing need and supply and that the level of unmet 
need will alter as other Local Plans progress.  
 
Both parties agree to support the ongoing partnership working to 
address sub-regional unmet need being delivered through the 
PfSH Statement of Common Ground to produce a new Joint 
Strategy and will continue to contribute towards the project.  
 
PfSH is supportive of authorities proceeding with local plans 
before the production of the Joint Strategy has concluded and 
recognises the importance of partnership authorities having up-to-
date Local Plans. Should the Joint Strategy work identify sites not 
considered suitable for development in the Fareham Local Plan 
technical evidence, this would be a matter for the Local Plan 
review.    
 
As a member of PfSH, GBC have signed a SoCG with FBC on 
the Fareham Local Plan 

  
 Employment  
2.5 The FLP2038 states that it will be allocating 124,964 sq.m. of 

employment floorspace across Fareham Borough over the plan period 
including 77,900 sq.m. at Daedalus. 

  
2.6 In its representation to FBC, this Council supported the employment 

allocation at Daedalus and the protection of other existing sites in 
Fareham Borough including those on the Gosport Peninsula as it 
supports local jobs for Gosport residents and enables a genuine choice 
of transport modes.  GBC also supports the protection of marine 
employment which together with such sites in Gosport and the wider 
sub-region provide a key economic asset for the area. 

  
2.7 The SoCG agreed position is as follows: 
 Both Councils agree that the Fareham Revised Publication Local 



5 
 

Plan will allocate sufficient land, and that there is enough land to 
meet employment requirements particularly within the area around 
Daedalus. Both Councils support the employment allocations at 
Daedalus set out in the plan. Both councils agree that there is 
currently no identified cross boundary need to be planned for.  
 
Both FBC and GBC agree to liaise on future employment supply 
and demand in particular where sites are to be allocated or 
conversely released for employment use in the Daedalus area. 
 
Both Councils will continue to engage through the Partnership for 
South Hampshire Statement of Common Ground which will 
consider the wider economic needs of South Hampshire and 
distribution of economic development between authorities. 

  
 Transport 
2.8 As set in paragraph 1.6 above GBC maintains a holding objection to 

the proposed allocation south of Longfield Avenue and East of Crofton 
Cemetery until such time that a transport assessment which includes 
the cumulative impact of development in the FLP2037 and the 
emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 (GBLP2038) concludes 
that there is no detrimental impact on the effectiveness of the road 
infrastructure serving the Gosport Peninsula including the Stubbington 
Bypass and Newgate Lane East.  This work would form part of the 
Statement of Common Ground between the two local planning 
authorities. 

   
2.9 The Fareham Local Plan is supported by a Strategic Transport 

Assessment (TA) that assesses the cumulative impact of the Local 
Plan allocations. The methodology for the Transport Assessment was 
agreed with the Highway Authority (Hampshire County Council) and 
identifies a number of junctions requiring mitigation as a result of Local 
Plan development. The TA modelling uses the South Hampshire 
Strategic Regional Transport Model (SRTM) to test the cumulative 
impact of the Local Plan traffic at a macro-level.  The model makes 
assumptions in relation to growth from sites identified in neighbouring 
authorities adopted Local Plan.  The TA followed the standard 
methodology used by a number of Hampshire authorities, and although 
there were some junctions that flagged as potential as a significant or 
severe impact when mitigation was added the impact was found to be 
acceptable. Furthermore, the Highways Authority have raised no 
objection to the methodology used. 

  
2.10 The TA is based on a Do Minimum scenario of 12,100 homes which is 

greater than the housing growth identified in the latest FLP2037 which 
sets out a current requirement of 9,556 dwellings and a total supply of 
10,594 dwellings. Both the Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane are 
included in the model’s baseline and no capacity issues have been 
identified as a result. There are no unacceptable impacts identified nor 
mitigation required to junctions near or in the Gosport administrative 



6 
 

boundary from proposed allocations in the Fareham Borough Local 
Plan 2037. This includes the Peel Common roundabout, Gosport Road 
or roads that lead into Stubbington. 

  
2.11 The modelling also included a higher growth scenario for the previously 

proposed Strategic Growth Area with a figure of 1,975 dwellings which 
is higher than the proposed combined figure of 1,430 dwellings 
identified for the South of Longfield Avenue and East of Croton 
cemetery allocations. 

  
2.12 However this Council considers it should maintain its holding objection 

to these allocations until such time that a combined transport 
assessment is completed which can demonstrate that these allocations 
in combination with those proposed in the emerging GBLP2038 will not 
have a detrimental impact on the strategic road network serving the 
Gosport Peninsula and that any noted impacts can be satisfactorily 
mitigated.  This would form part of a later version of the Statement of 
Common Ground.  

  
2.13 The Council needs to be reassured that the FLP2037 proposals 

together with the proposals in the forthcoming GBLP2038 do not have 
a detrimental effect on the effectiveness of the significant new road 
infrastructure at Newgate Lane East and the Stubbington Bypass.  It is 
considered that this information can be sourced using GBC’s evidence 
base which uses the same SYSTRA modelling to inform the emerging 
GBLP2038. 

  
2.14 Work is currently ongoing relating to this transport assessment work.  If 

the evidence is agreed by Hampshire County Council and identifies 
that the two new allocations together with the allocations proposed in 
the GBLP2038 are unlikely to have a significant impact on the relevant 
road junctions and network then a revised Statement of Common 
Ground will be produced on this matter. 

  
2.15 On other transport matters the Councils agree that they, ‘will continue 

to support delivery of the SEHRT scheme along the A27 corridor, 
safeguarding land and securing contributions towards the scheme 
where appropriate and necessary through respective Local Plan Policy. 
In addition, both Local Plans will proactively promote the use of public 
transport, along with encouraging active travel modes ahead of use of 
the private motorised vehicle through sustainable transport policy.’ 

  
 Strategic Gap 
2.16 The SoCG sets out the evidence base used to determine the Strategic 

Gap boundaries for the FLP2037, which this Council agrees with.  
Indeed the landscape study was cited by this Council in its earlier 
objections to the HA2 housing allocation, east of Newgate Lane (now 
withdrawn) which identified that the Gap should be retained at this 
location. The SOCG includes an assessment relating to the proposed 
amendments to the Strategic Gap to facilitate the allocations south of 



7 
 

Longfield Lane, Fareham and east of Crofton Cemetery Stubbington.   
  
2.17 This Council considered this element in detail in the Regulatory Board 

Report of 21st July 2021 (re-iterated in Appendix 2).  Consequently the 
allocations are considered acceptable in relation to two out of three of 
the main areas of concern:  there is no direct access onto the 
Stubbington Bypass from these sites; and the indicated gap between 
the new road and the proposed development sites is retained. The 
outstanding area of concern is previously mentioned in relation to road 
capacity and junctions identified in the transport section above. 

  
2.18 The SoCG acknowledges GBC’s representation on the Revised 

Publication Local Plan (2021) which supports the aims of Policy NE9 
but considers that additional opportunities can be made within the plan 
to deliver multi-functional green infrastructure for allocated sites.  

  
2.19 The SoCG agreed position is 

 
Both Councils support the principle and maintenance of a 
strategic gap to maintain the separation of Stubbington and Lee-
on-the -Solent from Fareham and Bridgemary. 
 
FBC and GBC will continue to work collaboratively to address 
strategic planning matters. Both FBC and GBC recognise that 
there is on-going sub-regional work which will lead to the review 
of the Spatial Position Statement and the production of a Joint 
Strategy which includes green infrastructure opportunities. 

  
2.20 GBC have maintained an objection to Policies DS1, HP4 and HP6 

regarding the detailed wording of these policies which it considers has 
the potential to undermine the strategic gap, particularly east of 
Newgate Lane. FBC however have not amended these policies and 
this area of disagreement remains and   will need to be considered by 
the Planning Inspector. 

  
 Wastewater and Nitrates 
2.21 The SoCG recognises the work that each authority has undertaken as 

part of PfSH to find appropriate mitigation to address the nitrates issue 
and the impact that eutrophication has had on internationally important 
habitats in the Solent and its harbours.  

  
2.22 It is noted for the purposes of the SoCG that, ‘both parties agree that 

the impact of the Fareham Local Plan 2037 on the Peel Common WTW 
are not strategic matters concerning this bilateral SoCG. These matters 
are addressed through FBC’s statement of common ground with PfSH 
and the PfSH statement of common ground to support the PfSH Spatial 
Strategy.’ 

  
3 Risk Assessment 
   



8 
 

3.1 The statutory Duty to Co-operate places a legal duty on local planning 
authorities and other organisations to engage constructively, actively 
and on an ongoing basis to develop development plan documents.  As 
part of the Duty to Cooperate, the NPPF introduced the requirement for 
cross boundary issues to be addressed in a Statement of Common 
Ground. Whilst this is not a duty to agree it is important for a Planning 
Inspector to be clear where there are areas of agreement between 
local authorities and where disagreements remain.  This document 
serves this purpose. 

  
4 Next steps 
4.1 The document sets out broad areas of agreement between the 

authorities and summarises those matters where there are outstanding 
issues as well as setting out briefly how previous matters of concern 
have been addressed. Once signed by the relevant officer from each 
authority this document will be submitted as part of FBC’s evidence 
base for its forthcoming examination in public.  

  
4.2 This Council will also prepare a SoCG with FBC at the Regulation 19 of 

the emerging GBLP 2038 next year and this will also be informed by 
emerging evidence of the work being carried out by the Partnership for 
South Hampshire (PfSH) on a sub-regional planning strategy. 

  
Financial Services 
comments: 

None 

Legal Services 
comments: 

None 

Climate Change Not applicable- This is an agreed position with 
Fareham Borough Council regarding the Fareham 
Local Plan 2037 which is subject to a sustainability 
appraisal prepared by FBC and will be included as 
part of the forthcoming examination in public. 

Equality and 
Diversity  

Not applicable- This report relates to a document 
prepared by FBC and will be subject to its own 
Equality and Diversity Statement. 

Crime and Disorder Not applicable- This is an agreed position with 
Fareham Borough Council regarding the Fareham 
Local Plan 2037 which is subject to a sustainability 
appraisal prepared by FBC and will be included as 
part of the forthcoming examination in public. 

Council Plan: N/A 
Risk Assessment: See Section 3 
Background papers: None 
Appendices Appendix 1: Fareham Local Plan 2037: Statement of 

Common Ground between Fareham Borough 
Council and Gosport Borough Council 
Appendix 2- Regulatory Board Report of 21st July 
2021 relating to the Fareham Local Plan 2037: 
Revised Publication Plan (Regulation 19) 

Report author/ Lead Jayson Grygiel, Manager of Planning Policy  



9 
 

Officer: 
 



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Fareham Borough Local Plan Statement of Common Ground
	Appendix 1 220128  Statement of Common Ground -version 2 - tracked changes version for ED FBC+extra
	Appendix 2-  Nov 2021 ED Board Report


